Public Document Pack

NORDEN AREA FORUM
Tuesday 11 December 2018 at 7.00pm
Norden Methodist Church, Edenfield Road,
Norden, Rochdale OL12 7QE

AGENDA

1.

Introductions, Apologies and Code of Conduct

2.

Minutes from the last meeting and matters arising

3.

Greater Manchester Police
(including update from PACT meetings)

4.

Councillor Update

5.

Ward Fund Update

6.

Open Forum

7.

Date and time of the next meeting
12 March 2019 at 7.00pm
Norden Methodist Church

Agenda Item 1
Rochdale Township Area Forums
Code of Conduct
It is established by and for the Rochdale Township Area Forums that the following
code of conduct will govern the behaviour of their members. The code of conduct will
be enforced by the Chair of this meeting.
Conduct at meetings
Members will at all times observe accepted practice while taking part in discussions
to:
• Be courteous to each other and support and assist other members in finding
the best possible solution to problems being discussed
• Allow each other the opportunity to speak and comment
• Attempt as far as possible to stick to the agenda and assist each other to
reach effective conclusions
• Operate within the constitution where applicable
• Aggression, violence, threats, harassment, intimidation and other disruptive
behaviour in the forum will not be tolerated
• The term ‘members’ applies to all those present at the meeting
Confidentiality
• Members will refrain from mentioning specific individual cases which may
cause embarrassment or identification of an individual
• Any information or item shared that is of a confidential nature will not be
disclosed to anyone else apart from members of the Forum in order to allow
the business of the meeting to proceed.
Dignity at meetings
• All those who attend Forum meetings have the right to be treated with dignity
and respect regardless of their race, colour, ethnic or national origin,
nationality, gender, marital status, age, sexuality, religion or any other matter
which causes people to be discriminated against
• The meeting will do all that is in its power to oppose all forms of harassment
and bullying
Individual Members
• Should disclose any personal interest that they consider may affect or
influence their approach to the matter being discussed
• Must show respect in all their dealings by observing reasonable standards
and courtesy, and by not seeking to take unfair advantage by virtue of their
position
Political Affiliation
• Even though individual members may be affiliated to/or be members of a
political party, they may not represent a political party in their role as
individual members of this Forum
• Elected Members attending meetings outside the ward they represent may be
allowed to speak, at the discretion of the Chair.
Breach of Code of Conduct
• If anyone attending the Forum meeting does not abide by the code of
conduct, the Chair will have the discretion to decide on an appropriate course
of action. The Chair may either issue a warning, ask the person to withdraw
from a particular agenda item or exclude that person from the meeting.
• Where a person is asked to leave a meeting, the Chair will have the discretion
to decide whether or not that person is welcome to attend future meetings.
• The Chair at his/her discretion, may close the meeting if he/she deems it
necessary

Page 2

Agenda Item 2
NORDEN AREA FORUM
Tuesday 11 September 2018
Norden Methodist Church, Edenfield Road
Norden, Rochdale
MINUTES
Present:
N. Morrell (Chair), P. Ellison, J. Kershaw, S. Kershaw, M. Newnham, J. Oliver,
S. Davison and four other members of the public.
Councillors: Councillors Gartside, Holly and Winkler
Officers:

V. White (RBC Townships & Communities Manager)

Apologies:

R. Hudson, PCSO N. Haille (GMP), M. Steward, N. Fowler, S. Gould and I. Sharrock

1.
INTRODUCTIONS, APOLOGIES AND CODE OF CONDUCT
The Chair introduced himself and officers present, and welcomed all to the meeting. He referred to
the code of conduct and asked all to abide by the code for the duration of the meeting.
The Chair extended best wishes to Rachel Hudson on behalf of the forum. Rachel has recently
undergone an operation and will be spending time recovering over the coming weeks.
2.
MINUTES FROM THE LAST MEETING AND MATTERS ARISING
The minutes of the previous meeting held on Tuesday 12 June 2018 were approved as a correct
record subject to the following amendment:
Pippin Hill Project
The project near Pippin Hill is Moss Row Woodland and Community Orchard. It is directed and led
by Richard Whittle, the Community Ranger, and the Green Volunteers with some voluntary input
from members of the Moss Row Allotments.
UPDATES:
Norden Carnival and Rochdale In Bloom/Britain In Bloom
The Chair updated in relation to the above, stating that the entries for In Bloom this year were
particularly strong. National results are imminent, with the Rochdale In Bloom results due in
October. Particular appreciation was given to Paul Ellison, Mark Widdup and Tracy Hibbert for the
huge amount of effort and support they provided up to and during this year’s entry.
Hutchinson Road
An email had been received prior to the meeting, raising concerns with regard to parking and other
traffic issues. The Chair explained that parking is an ongoing concern throughout the village, and
officers continue to work with Elected Members to identify potential remedies. The Chair requested
that the email be forwarded to the Highways Department for a formal response.
Neighbourhood Plan
Nigel has prepared the details with regard to the commitment required to deliver a sustainable plan.
Any plan would form an important part of the civic centre of the village. Many villagers have signed
up to the concept of a plan, but the commitment is proving a little harder to secure. Nigel intends to
hold an open afternoon for villagers to discuss the process and benefits with other groups in the

Page 3

process, or at the end of, development of their own plans. All will be welcome to attend.
Clay Lane/Furbarn Lane/Woodhouse Lane
New signage is now installed.
Woodhouse Lane broken gate
The gate remains in a state of disrepair, responsibility lies with United Utilities.
3.
GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE
Apologies were received from N. Haille (GMP). The Chair report his disappointment that PCSO
Haille has been moved to Castleton, and his disappointment was echoed by Elected Members and
all present. PCSO Haille will be replaced by PCSO Tracy Tynan on 13 September 2018.
PACT
The Chair has written to Baroness Hughes, via Liz McInnes MP, to express concern that the PACT
has now gone online. Councillor Winkler also had concerns, and informed the forum that the PACT
scheduled for 10 September 2018 had failed due to I.T. issues. Ward Councillors are to raise their
concerns directly with Inspector Rob McGregor. They will also raise the issue of an imbalance with
regard to the number of Police Officers that Greater Manchester Police has allocated to
neighbouring wards.
A written update informed the forum that several motorcycles had been seized during Op. Dragster
on 12 August 2018, and several warnings were issued. PACT priorities are burglary and youths
causing annoyance. Work has been undertaken with regards to drug dealing in the village, and a
speed operation on Edenfield Road/Elmsfield Avenue was cancelled for operational reasons. The
following statistics for the previous quarter were provided:
Residential Burglary: 13
Commercial Burglary: 4
Theft from Motor Vehicle: 7
Theft of Motor Vehicle: 6
It was confirmed that the CCTV at Wildbloods is now fully operational.
PCSO Haille asked the Chair to thank all residents and the community for all their help and support
over the past 11 ½ years. Thanks were reciprocated to PCSO Haille from the forum.
A680 Edenfield Road
It was stated that 36 road traffic collisions have been recorded, the timescale was unclear.
Questions were asked in relation to accident statistics held by Rochdale and Rossendale Councils.
Action: Townships to raise the matter with the Council’s Highways Service.
4.
COUNCILLOR UPDATE
Off-road bikes
Councillor Winkler visited Birtle to look at access points to the woodland, with a view to gradually
closing off all points. There is a plan and funding in place to restrict access to the quarry in
partnership with Birtle Trust, and the landowner is in agreement.
Paper House Bridge
Site meetings have taken place with the Rights of Way Officer at various sites, with a view to
installation of kissing gates, tiger traps and other apparatus.
These items are part of a ward-wide initiative designed to curtail dangerous off-road biking activities
and make Rights Of Way safe for legitimate users. For the full effect to be felt, the initiative will
have to run for a number of years.

Page 4

Parking
Councillors are working with officers to pursue a comprehensive plan; initially a pilot scheme of
bollards on Industry Street to aid drivers in exiting onto Edenfield Road will be funded. These
bollards will be paid for from the Councillors’ Members Funds. A beat survey will also be carried
out, which will mean a study across the whole village. All possible solutions will then be considered.
Yellow lines
The TRO is due to be implemented on Black Pits Road, and a further scheme has been agreed for
Edenfield Road/Elmsfield Avenue. Consideration of a TRO at the bus terminus will be given in
relation to the length of time for vehicles to park.
Remembrance Sunday
The service will take place in Norden in line with plans across the Borough. There will be an event
in the Town Centre on the afternoon of 11 November, prior to the lighting of a beacon to signify the
end of the commemorations of 100 years since the end of the Great War. The Chair thanked Caen
Matthews, Rochdale Borough Council’s Armed Forces Support Officer, and Paul Ellison, for all their
efforts with regard to the plans for Remembrance, the In Bloom projects linked to the Armed Forces,
and the installation of the Castleton War Memorial which will be dedicated at a service on 23
September 2018.
Greenbooth to Ashworth
Councillor Gartside has visited the area and confirmed that United Utilities are digging up the area
to install a drain; a small road is also under construction. Planning Officers are keeping an eye on
progress and will feedback any comments as necessary. Daniella Ripa is the Officer monitoring the
project to ensure that the scheme proceeds within the relevant permission.
Ashbourne Street
It is thought that the houses are likely to go on the market fairly soon.
Allocations Plan
Residents were advised to visit the Council website to view the allocations plan –
www.rochdale.gov.uk/allocationsplan
5.
WARD FUND UPDATE
It was confirmed that the allocation to Norden’s Ward Fund for 2018/19 will be £8,000, to be used to
develop schemes and projects that benefit the village.
6.
OPEN FORUM
Footpaths update
Mr Oliver provided the following information:
 The public Rights of Way from School Lane to Paper House Bridge and over land at Paper
House Bridge will be upgraded to a public bridleway, together with the diversion of Hey Fp11
and RocE Fp43 near the Three Owls Bird Sanctuary.
 There are damaged stiles at Sidholme Farm near Woodhouse Lane and a damaged gate under
Hunger Hill.
 There is a damaged gate at Woodhouse Lane and a damaged gate at the boardwalk over
Woodhouse Lane Brook.
 Footpath RocB Fp9 at Shawfield Stones Farm is obstructed by a locked gate. This is a long
standing complaint by both the Ramblers and the Rochdale CHA Rambling Club, which dates
back to 2015.
The Chair thanked Mr Oliver for his continued efforts on behalf of all footpath users. The Chair also
thanked Julie Simpson and her apprentice Harriet Morley.
Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Forum
The group is currently awaiting an environmental impact assessment, the journey will then continue

Page 5

via the Council, consultation, examination and referendum. The group is aware of a planned
housing development at Spring Mill in Whitworth (Rossendale) and will be asking the developer to
consider the Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Plan as part of their pre-application consultation. The
Chair also expressed his concern about the potential impact of the Spring Mill development on the
Broadley Fold and Prickshaw Conservation Area.
The Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Plan is a useful tool in building a positive relationship with
developers, and there is an opportunity for Norden to be in the same position should Norden
develop its own plan.
The forum is looking for funding to install gates on the moors, unfortunately despite there being
many grants available, the majority of funding is revenue and not suitable for such a scheme.
St. Paul’s Church barrier
The car park belongs to the Parish Council, who are not obliged to allow access. The car park has
been closed off due to anti-social behaviour. As the car park has the potential to make a difference
to parking problems in the village it was felt that the Parish Council should be approached.
Action: Councillor Gartisde to raise question of an opening time system with the Church
Council.
Whitefield Avenue/Moor Hill Path
The grass has not been cut, please can this be reported.
Action: Townships to raise the matter with Environmental Management Service.
Potholes/Blocked gulleys
A request was made that Edenfield Road be inspected for potholes, from the former bus terminus
and car park, up to the White Lion.
A request was made that the gulleys on School Lane, between the brook and Waterloo Farm, be
cleaned before the onset of Winter.
Action: Townships to raise the matters with the Highways Service.
Chair’s final update
 There will be a family fit and fun day at Jubilee Park on 22 September 2018, jointly organised
by Friends of Jubilee Park and Activate.
 The new NEEVA calendar is available from the end of September and costs £4.
 There will be a Halloween Party at Jubilee Park on 27 October 2018.
 The NEEVA Christmas Lights Switch On will take place on 29 November 2018.
 The Chair congratulated Roy Downs and Paul Ellison on their appointments as Chair and Vice
Chair of the Rochdale In Bloom group.
7.
DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING
Tuesday 11 December 2018 at 7.00pm
Norden Methodist Church, Edenfield Road, Norden

Page 6

